
 
 

MUNICIPAL LAND USE BOARD MINUTES 
BOROUGH OF EMERSON 

FEBRUARY 15, 2018 
 
 
 

This meeting of the Emerson Land Use Board was held in the Municipal Building.   Chairman Gary 
Schwinder opened the meeting at 8:13 PM.  In compliance with the Open Public Meeting Act, the 
Clerk has notified The Record and The Ridgewood News of this meeting and notice has been 
posted in the Municipal Building.  
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
  

Roll Call: 
 
Robert Adams     Absent 
Alban Bresa     Absent 
Fire Chief Tom Carlos     Present 
Michael DeOrio     Absent 
Gary Goursky     Present 
Louis Lamatina, Mayor     Present 
Evan Kutzin     Absent 
Steven Malone     Present 
Doug McKendry     Absent 
Norman Rieger     Absent 
Thomas Sudano     Present 
Gerry Falotico, Councilman     Absent 
Gary Schwinder, Chairman       Present 
Christopher Martin, LUB Attorney     Present 
Gary Ascolese, LUB Engineer     Present 
Bridgette Bogart, Borough Planner     Absent 
Michael Sartori, CCO/Zoning     Not Requested 
Perry Solimando, DPW Interim Super.    Not Requested 
Robert Hoffmann, Borough Admin.     Not Requested 
Marie Shust, Interim Secretary     Present 
 

Chairman Schwinder read a letter from the Bergen County Freeholders in which they advise all the 
municipalities of Bergen County that they are reviewing the current road widths.   Mr. Schwinder 
then asked Mr. Ascolese if he had received a copy of the correspondence.  Since he had not, Ms. 
Shust was instructed to scan and email the communication to Mr. Ascolese.  Ms. Shust gave the 
drawings provided by the County to Mr. Ascolese. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

Chairman Schwinder asked Ms. Shust to read the vouchers that had been received. 
 

Vouchers 15-Feb-18 

2/13/2018 18-00273 NJ Planning 
Chief Carlos 
Training  $ 109.00  

2/6/2018 1800231 Boswell Kinderkamack Ppty 
   
 $ 231.00  

2/6/2018 1800231 Boswell 166 Palisade  $ 316.00  
          

 $ 656.00  
 
 
Chairman Schwinder asked if there were any comments regarding the vouchers, hearing none he 
asked for a motion to accept, the vouchers, which was made by Mayor Lamatina, second was made 
by Mr. Malone, all were in favor. 
 
Chairman Schwinder asked if there were any questions, comments or corrections regarding the 
minutes of the February 1, 2018 meeting.  Hearing none, Chairman Schwinder then asked for a 
motion to accept the minutes, which was made by Chief Carlos, second was made by Mr. Sudano.   
Mr. Carlos, Mayor Lamatina, Mr. Sudano and Chairman Schwinder all voted yes.  Mr. Malone and 
Mr. Goursky were not eligible to vote on the minutes as they had not been present at the previous 
meeting. 
 
 
RESOLUTION: DEL ROSSO RESIDENCE – 16 FURMAN DRIVE 
 
Chairman Schwinder asked for comments or corrections to the resolution prepared for 16 Furman 
Drive as it regarded the following variance requests: 
    
        Front yard of 20.5 ft. rather than the average 25 ft. 
        Side yard setback of 7 ft. rather than 8 ft. 
        Rear yard setback of 32 ft. rather than 35 ft. 
 
Mr. Ascolese stated that he not received a copy of the Resolution for the subject property.  Mr. 
Martin provided a copy for Mr. Ascolese to review immediately.  After review, Mr. Ascolese stated 
that the Resolution covered all the points that were recommended, and he was satisfied. 
 
Mr. Schwinder asked the Board for any comments or corrections, hearing none he asked for a 
motion.  Mayor Lamatina made a motion to accept the Resolution, which was seconded by Chief 
Carlos.  Chief Carlos, Mayor Lamatina and Chairman Schwinder voted yes.  Mr. Sudano had 
recused himself from the application as he was a 200 ft. neighbor.  Mr. Malone and Mr. Goursky 
were not present at the previous meeting, therefore could not vote.  The motion passed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

APPLICATION:  ADAMS RESIDENCE – 71 HARTLAND AVENUE, BLOCK 218, LOT 15 – 
FENCE HEIGHT VARIANCE 
 
Chairman Schwinder called Renee Adams to the podium to present her application for a fence 
height variance.  Mr. Martin reviewed and accepted the notices and publications made by Ms. 
Adams. 
 
Ms. Adams stated that due to the topography of her property and the neighboring property to the 
rear (south), a fence height variance is required so that her yard will meet pool safety compliance 
regulations. 
 
The applicant testified that their back neighbor’s property to the south has an elevation that is 3 feet 
higher than her own back yard, where a pool was recently installed.  Furthermore, her neighbor’s 
property has a 3 foot high retaining wall upon which there is a 6 foot high stockade fence.  The 
applicant is seeking to install an 8 foot high fence on her property to maintain maximum pool safety 
in the event that the neighbor decides to remove their 6 foot high fence. 
 
Since the neighbor’s yard is 3 feet higher than the Adams’ property and the retaining wall is part of 
the neighbor’s property, a 6 foot fence would only provide a 3 foot fence if the neighbor were to take 
down their stockade fence.  By allowing the variance, they would be pool compliant and the fence 
would be no higher than the current stockade fence atop the retaining wall. 
 
Mr. Ascolese provided photographs to the Board which were marked Board 1 and Board 2, which 
show the retaining wall, and the stockade fence above.  Mr. Ascolese stated that this is a unique 
situation and was in agreement that in this instance an 8 foot high fence would provide the pool 
compliance needed and would not be out of place in the neighborhood where other fences were of 
varying heights due to the topography. 
 
Mr. Martin asked Mr. Ascolese what the fence height regulation is for yards without a pool.  Mr. 
Ascolese replied that 6 foot is the maximum in that case.  Mr. Martin noted that the Adams’ were 
therefore, seeking a 2 foot variance. 
 
Mr. Goursky wanted to know if the neighbor’s yard was lower than the wall.  Ms. Adams replied that 
the yard is level with the top of the retaining wall.  Mr. Goursky then asked Mr. Ascolese if this fence 
would create a drainage problem.  Mr. Ascolese referred to the previous Resolution, dated June 30, 
2017, in which the drainage was addressed and a seepage pit had been installed. 
 
Mr. Schwinder asked about the materials of the fencing and was advised it would be a vinyl fence, 
similar to that installed on the east and west sides of the property.   Mr. Schwinder stated that he 
agreed this is a unique situation.  He then asked for a motion to open the floor to the public, which 
was made by Mayor Lamatina, second was made by Mr. Malone, all were in favor.  Seeing no 
hands a motion to close the floor was requested, which was made by Mr. Goursky, second was 
made by Mr. Malone, all were in favor.  
 
Chairman Schwinder asked the Board for comments, hearing none he asked for a vote on the 
application.  Mr. Malone made a motion that the application be accepted, which was seconded by 
Mayor Lamatina.  Chief Carlos, Mr. Goursky, Mr. Malone, Mayor Lamatina, Mr. Sudano and 
Chairman Schwinder were all in favor.   The application was accepted.  Mr. Martin advised Ms. 
Adams that a Resolution would be available at the next meeting of March 1. 
 



4 
 

APPLICATION:  VALERO – 161 KINDERKAMACK ROAD, BLOCK 616, LOTS 1 & 2 – NEW 
MIXED USE CONSTRUCTION 
 
Mr. Martin advised the Board and residents that the applicant for the Valero construction had 
requested a carry-over to the meeting of March 1, which had been granted with no additional notice 
and without prejudice. 
 
Chairman Schwinder asked Mr. Martin if there had been any response from the attorney regarding 
the Armenian Home extension request.  Mr. Martin replied that he had been in touch with the 
attorney, but the attorney was currently out of town and a response had not been received.  Mayor 
Lamatina stated that since this matter was not on the Agenda it should not be addressed. 
 
Chairman Schwinder asked for a motion to open the floor to the public, which was made by Mr. 
Goursky, second by Mr. Sudano, all were in favor. 
 
Ms. Jill McGuire of 154 Linwood Ave approached the podium.  She spoke about the proposed 
Valero project and asked the Board to please consider the residents when reviewing the application.  
She said she had reviewed the plans in the Borough Hall, and noticed that the project used an 
address of 161 Kinderkamack Rd, when all of the residents consider the property to be at 101 
Linwood.  She noted that the plans show garages which are facing the neighbors, that the front 
setback requested is 15 feet where all the residents have a 25 foot set back.   Mr. Martin thanked 
Ms. McGuire and reminded her to speak up at the meeting of March 1. 
 
Mr. Joe Sciara of Valley Sign approached the podium.  He stated that he had been before the Board 
and received a variance on June 15, 2017 for the Emerson Hotel signs.  He told the Board he was 
looking for direction in regard to the sign to be installed on the side of the building.  His client is still 
requesting an electronic sign which could be changed according to season and event.     
 
Mr. Ascolese said he had no information with him, but knew that the sign committee was addressing 
many of the concerns brought up by Mr. Sciara.   Mr. Martin stated it was highly irregular that an 
applicant be heard as a spectator and suggested that he meet with the Borough Engineer informally, 
and if necessary to apply to the Board formally to be heard.  The first step should be an informal 
meeting with the Board Engineer. Mr. Ascolese suggested that the request go through the Building 
Department, which then would be directed to him. 
 
Chairman Schwinder commended Mr. Sciara on sign on the front of the Emerson Hotel, stating how 
it fit into the architecture and neighborhood.  Mr. Sciara said he wanted to be sure the sign on the 
side also met that criteria and all he wanted was direction.  Chairman Schwinder said that as 
technology progressed, there would be instances where the sign regulations would have to be 
modified to meet the newest innovations. 
 
Chairman Schwinder stated Mr. Sudano and the sign committee had been meeting to address the 
sign regulations throughout the Borough.  He asked Mr. Sudano the status of committee's report 
and was the committee ready to make a report to the Board.  Mr. Sudano replied that Ms. Bogart 
and the committee were ready to make a report.  Chairman Schwinder asked Ms. Shust for the next 
available meeting where there was no application scheduled.  March 15th has no applications 
pending, Mr. Schwinder asked Ms. Shust to block that date for the sign committee, which would 
probably be lengthy.  Ms. Shust stated that the request for the Armenian Home extension may be 
complete at that time.  Mr. Schwinder stated that the Armenian Home request should not take too 
much time, as it would be a letter to the Board. 



5 
 

 
Chairman Schwinder asked for a motion to close the floor to the public, which was made by Mr. 
Goursky, second by Mr. Malone, all were in favor. 
 
Mayor Lamatina told the Board about changes to the Kinderkamack Road traffic signal timing at the 
railroad crossings and that that, at the request of the borough, “no turn on red” signs had been 
removed from the Kinderkamack Road intersections with Linwood Ave and Ackerman Ave. 
 
Mr. Martin then addressed the Mayor and the Council’s continued advancement in regard to the 
Affordable Housing matter.  He stated that the courts have been inundated with complaints by 
various municipalities and commended them on their handling of the situation in Emerson.  Mayor 
Lamatina stated there was a hearing on March 23 regarding confirmation of the settlement. 
 
Chairman Schwinder asked if there was any other business, seeing no hands, he asked for a motion 
to adjourn, which was made by Mayor Lamatina and second was made by Mr. Malone. All were in 
favor.  The meeting was adjourned at 9:00 pm. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Marie Shust 
Board Secretary 

 


